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Gillett &J ohnston

CROYDON, Surrey.
BELLS, CLOCKS, CARILLONS.

St. Peter’'s Collegiate Church,

Wolverhampton.
Tenor (33 cwt.) of the New Ring of 12.

WtJLFHUN CHAMBERS, WOLVERHAMPTON,
H18BRB. GILLETT and JOHNSTON, CROYDON. 4th March, 1*11.
mantlemea,

The re-oasting of tho peal of ten belli with the addition ot two
le « cmee in the tower of Bt Peter'* Collegiate Church, Wolrerhamptoa,
rsseatly carried cut by yoe las proved most nuoceasful, and given
meserai satisfaction.

I am authorised by the Rector and Wardens to say how pleased
ttey are with the result. In the opinion of those well gnaliSed to
Hdre, we hare now, undoubtedly, one ot the best peals in the Kingdom.

Youra faithfully, F T. BECK,
Arohiteot Diooesaa Burreyor.

MODERN WORK.

FRIDAY, DECEMBER 4th,

1914. Price Id.

MAINTENANCE OF BELLS.

Despite the war, the dedication of restored, augmented
or new rings of bells has gone steadily on. The reason,
of course, is that the contracts for this work had been
given out before the calamitous happenings of the last few
months had been thought of by the general public. Hap-
pily for the bell founding industry most of the big firms
have sufficient orders on hand to last them a considerable
time, and we hope the war may have been brought to a
satisfactory conclusion before there is any serious falling
off in the work of our foundries. It is well, however, to
face facts, and if the present conditions last over an ex-
tended period it is to be feared that, with so much money
needed for other purposes, bell restoration may suffer, and
the carrying out of much-needed repairs in belfries will
be, to some extent, delayed. As ringers, however, it
should be our duty to prevent the necessities of the bells
being overlooked, for it is as essential that the equipment
in our church towers should be maintained in an efficient
condition as it is that any other portion of the fabric and
its fittings should be kept in repair.

It was one of the blots on church maintenance in the
past, that the belfry was an object of neglect. That state
of affairs has happily passed almost completely away
under the realisation by Church authorities of their respon-
sibilities in the matter. We do not think, however, that
it is out of place to give a word of warning to ringers to
see that, in the present stress of circumstances, our bel-
fries and bells are not made to suffer unduly. Money for
big schemes of restoration would undoubtedly be hard to
raise during the existing state of affairs, but where dilapi-
dations are manifesting themselves it is a foolish policy to
allow things to drift. Often the expenditure of a few
pounds would save a heavy outlay a few years hence, and,
as it must obviously be a long time before financial con-
ditions will again reach their normal standpoint, it is
unguestionably the soundest policy to deal with repairs as
the need arises. Ringers can do much in this respect by
paying special attention to their bells, and, where occa-
sion demands, bringing the matter tactfully but forcefully
before the responsible authorities.

To a large extent ringing is at a standstill and time
might now well be given by local companies, as was sug-
gested recently by a correspondent, in improving the bel-
fries. There are often small matters which, by the ex-
penditure of a little time, might be carried out and which
would effect an improvement in the comfort of the belfry.
The present is an opportunity when these little things
could well be attended to, for later on, when peace is
proclaimed, there will be much lost time in actual ringing-
to make up.
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CHARLES CARR,™

SMETHWICK,
BIRMINGHAM

BELLS

FOR CHURCHES,

SINGLY,
IN PBALS.

CHIMES FOR CLOCKS.

Peals Augmented,

OR

OPINION OF OUR
MODERN WORK.

Cracked Bells Recast.

FRAMES

In Best Seasoned Oak,

Broomfield Vicarage,
Chelmsford.

Dear Sirs,

I have great pleasure in stating
that we are perfectly satisfied with
the manner In which yon have
oarrled ont the work entrusted to
fon of re-arranging and re-hanging
the Broomfield Church Bells.

We consider that the work re-
ficcts great credit upon your firm,
and believe that your system of
hanging the bells reduces the vibra*
Hon of the steel frame supplied by
you to a minimum.

The CHURCHWARDENS unite
with ME in this expression of
opinion. The BELLRINGERS are
also unanimous in their praise of
lhe alterations effected by you.

Steel or lron.

Chiming Machines.

Best Workmanship and
Satisfaction Guaranteed

FITTINGS

OF ALL KINDS.
ARTISTIC WROUGHT IRON

BRACKETS.
Tours truly, Heab! .
CHA.S. EDMUNDS, Malleable l_rlt:n Brackets.
Vicar of Broomfield, Best B i Bopes.

BEPAIBS AMD BKHANOINS
IN ALL BRANCHES.

BELLHANGERS sent to Inspect
and report on Bells and Towers

easrs. C. CARR, LTD.
8methwlck.

Kindly ask us to Inspect, Report
and Tender before deciding your
Contract, — we may be able to
assist you.

SEND FOR CATALOGUE

ESTABLISHED 1760.

JOHN NICOLL,

Churcn Bell Rope and Clock Rope
Manufacturer,

60, QUEEN'S ROAD, PECKHAM, LONDON, SE.

"Two minutes from Queen's Road Station, L.B. & S.C. Railway).

Late Is8f Keeton’'s Road, Bermondsey.

Maker to St. Panl's Cathedral, Westminster Abbey, Imperial Instltatu

Canterbury, Edinburgh, St. Alban's, Lincoln, Durham, Peterborough,

Melbourne (Australia), Rochester, Dublin, St. Patrick's, Manchester
and Worcester Cathedrals etc . etc,
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TWELVE BELL PEAL.
BIRMINGHAM.

ST. MARTIN'S GUILD FOR THE DIOCESE OF
BIRMINGHAM.

On Tuesday, November 24, 1914, in Three Hours and Fi/ty-six Minutes,
At the Church of St.

A PEAL OF STEDMAH CINQUES,

Martin,

5017 CHANCES ;

Tenor 36 cwt., in C.
Thomas RuUSSam .. Treble Morris J. Morris 7
Charles Dickens ... 2 Albert W alker 8
Thomas H. Reeves... 3 Samuel G rove 9
John Neal. 4 Thomas Miller 10
Alf. Paddon Smith . 5 James E. G roves 11
James H. Shepherd........ 6 Private Sidney J. Jessop Tenor

Composed by John Carter, and
Conducted by James E. Groves.

Rung with the bells half-muffled as a tribute of respect to the late
Field Marshal Earl Roberts. V.C., K.G..K.P., G.C.B., G.C.S.l., etc.,
an honorary Freeman of the City of Birmingham.

EIGHT BELL PEALS.
DARLEY DALE, DERBYSHIRE.
THE MIDLAND COUNTIES ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, November 21, 1914, in Three Hours and Thirteen Minutes,

At the Church ok St. Helen.
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5056 CHANCES ;
Tenor 15% cwt., in F.
eHugh W . Gregory... ..Treble pames L. W mighH t ............. 5
Thomas W hite.. 2 Alfred C. Wright ... 6
Henry Gregory 3 John W. Derbyshire ... 7
Edwin Blackwell ... .. 4 William Taylor ... Tenor

Composed by J. J. Brierley, and
Conducted by Alfred C. Wright.

= First peal of Major. Rung with the bells half-muffled in memory
of Harold Drake, brother of the headmaster's wife of Stancliffe School,
who was killed in action in British East Africa ; also of William Hart
who perished with all on board H.M.S. " Monmouth."

STOKE-IN-COVENTRY.
THE WARWICKSHIRE GUILD.
On Saturday, November 21, 1914, in Three Hours,
At the Church of St. Michael.
A PEAL OF STEDMAH TRIPLES, 5040 CHAHCES;
Tenor 133 cwt.

Oswald J. Hunt . Treble William T. COX .
William Smith 2 Edward H. Johnson
Adolphus Roberts 3 Frank E. Pervin

Joseph H. W hite . 4 Charles Freeman...

Composed by Sir Arthur Heywood, and -
Conducted by Frank E. Pervin.

Rung with the bells half-muffled as a token of respect for the late
Earl Roberts, and those who have fallen during the war.

HANDBELL PEALS.

GUILDFORD, SURREY.
THE WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.

On Wednesday, November 25, 1914, in Two Hours and Nine Minutes,

At the Residence of A. H. Pulling,
A PEAL OF STEDMAH TRIPLES, 5040 CHAHCES;
Pitstow's Variation. Size 17 in A.

Septimus Radford......... 1—2 I Maurice Smither....... 5—0
Alfred H. Pulling 3—4 | Thomas W. Radford ... 7—8
Conducted by Alfred H. Pulling.

Umpire: J. T. Lee. Witness: Mrs. Pulling.

Arranged and rung as a birthday compliment to Mrs. Dobinson, of
Ranmore Common, her Guildford friends wishing her many happy
returns of the day.



December 4th, 1914.

GUILDFORD, SURREY. -
THE WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD
(The Holy Trinity Society.)
On Saturday, November 28, 1914, in Two Hours and Twenty Minutes,
At the Residence of A. H. Pollino,

A PEAL OF CRANOSIRE TRIPLES, S040 CHANCES;

Holt's Original. Size 17, in A.
Charles Hazelden 1—2 | Ailfred H. Polling 5—6
Mabrice Smither...... 3“4 | Joseph T. Lee . 7—8

Conducted by Alfred H. Pulling.
Witnesses : Mrs. Polling, Mrs. Hazelden, and
MdiIle. Yvonne Eloie-Selone.
Rung as a birthday compliment to Mr. and Mrs. Giles, of Reading.
This was the 110th peal rung at the conductor's residence.

LEISTON, SUFFOLK.
THE NORWICH DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, November 28, 1914, in Tno Hours and Niue Minutes,
In the Belfry of St. Margaret's Chorch,
A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB MAJOR, 5024 CHANCES ;

Bailey i—2 | Charles F. Bailey 5—6
Bailey.. . 3—4 [ Edgar H. Bailey 7—38
Composed by J. W. Parker, and
Conducted by Charles F. Bailey.
Umpire : C. Sampson.
Rung as a birthday compliment to E. H. Bailey.

James M.
Ernest S

OLDSWINFORD. WORCESTERSHIRE,
WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION
(Northsrn Branch.)
On Saturday, November 28, 1914, in Two hours and Forty Minutes,
At the Residence of Mr. Joseph Smith,
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5040 CHANGES ;

1—2 | Robert Matthews
William Short .. 3—4 | Joseph Pigott
Composed by John Carter, and
Conducted by William Short.
Referee: Joseph Smith. Witness: Thomas Heathcote.
First peal of Major on handbells by all except the conductor.

rm-:

John Bass

PEAL NOT TO BE BOOKED.

We arc r e g u e 10 suu- that tlic peal of Grfi.iidsirc Triples rung
at Scarborough oil June 18th, 1914, will not be booked by tlic York-
shire Association owing to tlie rule as to payment of subscriptions not
having hcen complied! with.

ROLL OF HONOUR.
The following is a further list of lingers who have responded to the
call to the young lliaill:cod of the country:

£. Large, of Bishop Ryder's, Birmingham. 8Ul Royal Warwick-

shire Regiment.

Gunner J. J. Pratt, of Gicat- Munden, lloyal Garrison Artillery,

now at Woolwich. -

Corpl. J B. Jackson, of S1. Oswald's, Guislev, 6th Batt. Duke

of Wellington's Wetst Riding Regiment, now at Doncaster.

Pte Harry Stott, of St. Oswald's, Guisley. 6th Batt. Duke of

Wellington's West Riding Regiment, mow at- Skipton.

George Downing, of Irthlingborough Ambulance Division, now

at Kidwotih Military Hospital, volunteered for active service.,

W. Pearson junr., of All Saints’, Pontefract. B Co., 10tli Batt.

Rifle Brigade, now at Blackdown, Faniborongli, Hants. .

Pie T. Metcalf.-, Parish Church, Dalton-iu-Furuess, R.A.M.C.,

at present in lIreland.

Pte T. B Il, Parish Church, Dnlton-in-l'urr.css. 4th King's Own
Royal Lancaster Territorials.
Saddington, of Cranford, -Northants,
army, and is now at Colchester.

B. Saddingt 111, of Cranford. 4tli Batt,
now at Wellingborough.
From SI. Giles', Ashtead, hand, the following are serving:—
James B. Wvntt, and

13 has joined the new

Northanf<= Territorials,

Geoiuc A. Conk. 5th Hast Surrey Territorial Reserve, now at
Windsor.

Sidney Readick, 5tli East Surrey Territorial Reserve, now at
Wimbledon.

From Selby Abbey company, the following have joined:—
Goorge Alfred Morley, 5Ui West. Yorks Regiment.
Robert Smith Moate. 5tli West Yorks Regiment.
Albert Ory«r. 10th West Yorks

From St. Mary's, Braugliing, the following have joined tho 1st Bat4

llerto Territorials:—

W. K. North,
A. Bnrler.
A Phillips

now in France.
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RINGERS AND THE WAR.

We hope, in course of time, to be able to include in our
list of contributors all those towers who are not giving
donations through other channels. Many belfries we
have heard of are giving to local relief funds, but through-
out the country there arc a large number who will doubt-
less be only too ready to help and who have not contri-
buted. It is for these that we have opened our columns
to acknowledge individual items, which the ringers them-
selves may not have cared to send direct to the Prince of
Wales’ Fund at Buckingham Palace. We hope that all
who can may send their mite, so that ringers as a whole
may play a worthy part in helping a noble cause.

NATIONAL RELIEF FUND.
The following further contributions have reached us :(—.

RINGERS' COXTRIBt'TIOXS. £ s. d
Amount already acknowledged ... 6 6
Mr. James George (second donation)  .......... 026
Bushev Society (November collection), per Mr.
B. Prewett) e 050
Total ~51 14 o
BELGIAN REFUGEES’ FUND. £ s. cf
Amount already acknowledged — ................ 140
“Wanderer” (fourth donation)...........ccccecevueens o 2 o
“Mrs. Wanderer” (third donation) 020
York Minster Society, November -collection,
per Mr. G. HOFNEer .....cccooiiiiiiiec e o 6 o
Total £i i+ o

RINGER INVALIDED FROM THE TRENCHES.

Major Herbert Baker, of the 1st Hertfordshire Territorials, who>o
valiant exploits were the subject of warm congratulation iu tho dis-
patches from Sir John French early in tbo week, has been invalided
home to Hertford with rheumatism. When he left the men were still
in the trenches.

Major Baker is n member of the All Saints* Church company of
ringers, Hertford, and a life member of the Hertfordshire County
Association. He was a well-knowu figure in ringing ciroles a few
years ago. and took part in the 12.(06 Double Norwich at Bovne Hill
in 1692.

PHOTOGRAPH BRINGS NEW FRIENDS.

The photograph, which wc published in our issue of Xov. 20th. of
Pte Wooldridge, of the Bradfield band, who is among the wounded
in a Dublin Hospital, has been the means of bringing him new friends.
He writes that some of the Dublin ringers hare visited him. and much
surprised him by showing him his own photograph. He has also had
influenza, which he puts down to the unaccustomed luxury of sleeping
in bed instead of on the ground.

LECTURE ON RINGING.

A lecture on campanology was given last Friday evening at Houm”-
low to the members of the Ealing and District Teachers' Association
of tho N.U.T.. by the President (Mr. H. \V. Cowley), who is one of
the Heston Church band, and a member of the Middlesex Association.
Mr. Cowley dealt in a very interesting manner with the arrangements
of an English belfry, and bell machinery, made reference to some of
the famous bells ind described the continental carillons. He then
went on to deal with method ringing, which he illustrated by Grand-
siro Doubles. Handbells and peal ringing were also described, and
the lecture was farther illustrated by touches of Grand”ire and Sted-
man Triplr* and Bob Major, rung on handbells by the following
members of th* Middlesex Association: Messrs. W. and A. Shepherd
(Hersham), J. ft. Mackman (Southall), and \Y. Lawrence (West Ealing).
The hearty applause at the end of each touch clearly showed that the
audience appreciated handbell ringing.

DEATH OF A PETERBOROUGH RINGER.

We regret to announce the death of Mr. George Jutson, a member

of the St. Mary’'s Church band, Peterborough, and of the Peter-
borough and District Association. He was only 21 years of age, and
and will be much missed by the members at Peterborough. Sincere

sympathy will go out to his parents iu tlicir sad bereavement.
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STEDMAN ON EVEN NUMBERS.

By GEORGE T. CLAYTON.

Plain Courses.

Major. Royal. Maximus.
128 changes. 160 changes. 192 changes.
12345678 123-1567S90 1234567890KT
13251768 1325476980 1325-1769SEOr

5274 6274 5274

5721 57-24 5724

7542 7542 7542

7452 7-152 7-152

4725 4725 4725

4275 4275 4275
31245786 3124579608 312-15796e8t0O
32154876 321519706* 3215497e Gt 80

1458 1459 1159

ul185 4195 4195

4815 4915 1915

8151 9451 9451

85-11 9541 95-11

5814 5914 5914
23518467 23519-10786 235194e 716118
Repeat Repea Repeat
7 times. 9 limes. 11 tunes.

Stedman Bobs and. Single*.

Stedman on even numbers, as it has hitherto been
objectionable as Bob Triples and Gratnjsiru Major.
quirements of the Stedman system:—

1.—The dodging bells must in any case be in pairs, and, therefore,
Oll even numbers the* hunting bells must be even 11 number.

2.—Each hunting bell must do the full hunting work by striking
two blows in each place, one in hunting up and the other in hunting
down, without cither leaving the hunting set before it has finished
its work or lying still in the middle of its work.

3.—Likewise each dodging bell must do the full dodging work by
dodging straight up or straight down as tho case may be to an extent
commensurate with the length of the hunting cycle.

4—The order of tlie hunting must be revorsed at every repetition
of the hunting cycle, tho cycles must be in series, there must be two
cycles to the div'oion, and as many divisions to the course as there are
bells. .

5.— At the cycle ends hunting bells must change places with dodg-
ing bells, one 011 odd and two on even numbers. This necessitates
dodging bells lying still, one on odd and twb on even numbers, and
in the latter caso it also necessitates the hunting bells being inside.

Tho problem has been imperfectly solved by tliree-bell hunting sets
fore and aft with the dodging bells in the middle (Double Stedman),
but although this solution has several very attractive features it has
never commended itself to the Exercise, probably as much as for any-
thing else because the courses are inconveniently short. There arc
two hunting cycles to the division, one direct and the other retrograde,
os on odd numbers, and it also has as many divisions to the course
as there are bells—and the hunting cycle is kept intact; but the cycles
are in parallel, and consequently the divisions are only half the proper
length.

The solution set out above fulfils tho necessary conditions as per-
fectly as they are fulfilled on odd numbers. It is worth mentioning
that with equal numbers of dodging bells fora and aft, as in Major,
the last row of tliei first half of the plain course is roundsreversed,
and it is unnecessary to add that- the methtod is symmetrical about its
major axis. These are very desirable properties, and they point to the
advisability of six hunting bells in Royal, and four, plac'kl centrally,
or eight in Maximus. Stedman is a protean method in every sense
of the word, and it does not follow because there can only be three
hunting bells in Doubles tiliat there must only be three in Triples,
Caters and Cinques. But three has always been considered the best
number, and it is reasonable to suppose, for tho present at all events,
that four is the best number ini Major, Royal and Maximus. There
is, however, a sufficient reason why there should not be six hunting
bells in Royal, and eight in Maximus. With only one pair of dodging
bells behind, the bob boll is obliged to strike three consecutive blows
in one placo. It is truo that this blemish in an aggravated form is
winked at in other methods, as is also a greater blewiisli in Stedmau
Doubles, in which, by a special single for which r.o just cause can le
diown, the dodging bells aro interfered with in their work. But not-
withstanding tills license the blemish should undoubtedly be ooniin*ji

rung, is as
To meet the re-

to Doubles and Major, in which it or a worse blemish
cannot he avoided. It is remarkable that Stedman, tho
only method that attains to the pre-eminence of the
triple  crown by doubling the length of the divisions,

having as manv divisions to the course as there are bells, and keeping
the hunting cycle intact, should bo imperfect in the lowest numbers,
both odd and even. But so it is, and, strictly speaking, Stedman
commences with Triples and Royal. But the Exercise has never seen
its way to speak strictly, nor is it the least likely that it ever will,
and until this is done Doubles i-nd Major are entitled to pass muster

The under-noted peal is believed to bo tho greatest length ever
obtained on eight belli without singles, and without moving the three
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heavy bells. In presenting; it to the Exercise it is
pointed out that Stedman’s masterly device of making three or more
bells subject to Plain jn-inciple, and leaving the other bells free, meets
all the requirements of ringing on both odd and even numbers of bells
without, in the higher numbers, spot or blemish of any kind, and the
device is withal so elegant that it lias won the admiration of every
discriminating man. It is, therefore, in accordance with the fitness of
things that of all the great men who in their day and generation have
adorned the Exercise, only one man has been oounted worthy to have
a method called by his name, and thus to have his name exalted aoovo
every other name.
7296 STEDMAN MAJOR.

123456 8 12

24315 —

41325 —

13542 — —

35214 — —

32415 —

34512 —

41532 —

15243 — —

52314 — —

53412 — n

34251 — -

45231 —

52143 — —

21351 — —

23451 —

35421 —

54132 — -

43152 —

31245 — -

Repeat twice.
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VETERAN'S BIRTHDAY CELEBRATION.

INTERESTING GATHERING AT TIPTON.

Mr. Wm. Reek Small, tho veteran ringer of Tipton, lias readied
the rips ago of 75 years, and at the Court House Inn, Church Lane,
Tipton, he entertained to a splendid re-past a company of upwards of
40 looal hell ringers to commemorate the auspicious event. Mr. Small
is one of tho most noted ringiers iu tho Midlands, and has toured iu

America, Balgium, and other parts of the European continent. His
peals number 110 fewer than 321.
After dinner, Alderman J. S. Pritchett, M.A., B.C.L., of King's

Norton, Birmingham, was voted to the chair, and was supported by
tile Rev. Wilson de Vine (Vicar and Kura] Dean), the Rev. J. Arthur
Price (Vicar of Coselev), tho Rev. E. V. Cox (St. Michael's, Rushall)
and the Rev. F.N . Fletcher (curate of Tipton) Mr. W. R. Small, and
three of his sons (Messrs. William, Thomas and James Small). Ten
members of the Tipton band were present, with Messrs. J. Carter,
W. Il. Gaddon. A. Paddon Smith, R. Faux, J. E. Groves, Il. 'eithers
(of Birmingham), J. George (Rugby), Joseph Bate (a Wedncsbury
veteran, 84 years of age), B. Gough and Wm. Fisher (Coseley), B.

l;ullwood (Sedgley), T. Horton and J. Screen (West Bromwich), A.
Kettle and. H. Knight and) J. Bradney (Wolverhampton), E. J.
Dewier (Sclly Oak), J. Bayless, J. Goodman, sen., S. Spittle, II.

Sheppard (Dudley). J. T. Elton (Walsall), J. H. Pagett (Stourbridge),
H. Mason and A. E. Parsons (Old 1liU), and others.

The gathering afforded a very happy reunion of old friends, and it
is interesting to note that Mr. Jos. Bate rang with Mr. W. R. Small
in his first poal 50 years ago, the method being Kent Treble Bob
Royal, and they are now tlie only two surviving members of the band.

Tile health of Mr. Wm. R. Small was proposed by the chairman,
who Teferred to the many good qualities Mr. Small possessed. He
was he said, known far and wide as an enthusiastic ringer, always
ready to help any bogiuner to master the science of change ringing.
He had set a very high standard of proficiency for the younger genera-
tion to follow He had shown Jiis staying power by the long peals
ho had taken part in, one being 9,000 Stedman Cinques at Birming-
ham, while he had also rung several peals of 8,000 Grandsire Caters.
Ho was a kind and generous friend, a staunch and loyal Churchman,
and a most regular attendant to the duties in the belfry, and at the
services in the-church.—The Vicar of Tipton, in seconding, also testi-
fied to the high esteem in which Mr. Small was held, and wished him
many years of life to oontinue the good work he had been doing
so many years in the parish.

The toast was drunk with musical honours, and Mr. Spittle then sang
“ Many happy returns of the day,” tho company joining heartily in
the chorus. Mr. Faux rendered the song, “ Down by the river side,"
and Mr. Withers tapped a courso of Double Court Bob Major in
splendid style on his dulcimer.

Mr. Small responded to tho toast in very feeling and suitable terms.

During the afternoon, touches in various methods were rung on tlie
tower bells, instead of a peal which would have been attempted, but
for the w a r

Ringers visiting the attla Show in London, on December 10th, and
wishing to have a “ pull,” diould communicate with Mr, 0. T. Coles,
49, Wood Street, Walthamstow.



THE BELL OF RUGBY SCHOOL CHAPEL

(Weight 64cwt. 2qgrs. 2olbs.)

DEDICATED 21st JULY, 1914.

CAST BY

JOHN TAYLOR & CO.,
LOUGHBOROUGH.
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MEARS & Foundry Unique for Presentation
Established
A.D. 1570. An Inkstand in the

— design of a —
Well - shaped Bell.

STA‘ N BAN K This charming model in Solid Hall.
’ Marked Silver will make a most
appropriate and useful Gift.

It can be supplied in the following sizes:—
Bellfounders <€ Bellhangers, Diameter 22in.  2fin.  3}in. 3%in.  4m. 4$in. 5in.
Price .. 9/- 13/6 17/6 22/6 27/6 35/~ 46/6

Monogram or Inscriptions Engraved at Moderate Ciiarges.

32 & 34, Whitechapel Road, J’ UUI\V}I\SjFIfIIiD Goldsmith and

Silversmith,

W O K IN G
LONDON, E. (MAKER OF THE RINGERS' BADGE)

Change- Ringing
An Introduction to the Early Stages
--------------- of the Art of --—------memm—-

CHURCH OR HANDBELL RINGING

For the use of Beginners, by
CHARLES A. W. TROYTE.

[Fourth Edition.]
Complete edition, cloth, 2b. 6d. Small edition fu$ t

*7EM « BELWS -WA» «PfcntMIU

e n SHEPORIOHHGEM. and including 6-bell ringing), paper, Is
< *<-Br-VAKiou3-DohoRs-A-n-iU4
g v ;}Lﬁlﬁ‘&iﬁ:ﬁms_ ELAND BROTHERS, High St., EXETER >
Tr-cryw -iavoamus WELLS, GARDNER. DARTON & Co.,
— Paternoster Buildings, London —
The Jasper Snowdon Series.
ROPE-SIGHT. Is 6d., sixth ed. 150 pages; treat. Plain Bob, con
mencing on three bells.
GRANDSIRE. 2s. 6d.; seoond ed.; 264 pag oommencing on Its
Tenor Bell. 25 cwt.. of the new ring bells; complete with the Thompson hart., eto., eto.

' ' STANDARD METHODS. 2« 8d.; fifth ed.; revised: to follow sithet
ot Ten at St. Peter’s Brighton. of the above, Diagrams alone Is. 6d.; 41 pages; Lotterprx:
! alone Is. 6d..; 100 pages.

STEDMAN. 2s. 6d.; 275 Bages by the Rev. C. D. P. Davies, 111
with an appendix by Sir Arthur Heywood, Bart., eto., eto.
TREBLE BOB. Part I. Is. 6d.; second ed.; with appendlx 101
closely printed pages. Part Il., suited for Conductor* only:
very scarce; 2e. 1}d.; 236 pages
ESTIMATES SU B M ITTED DOUBLE NORWICH C.B. Ma]or At present out of print.
SURPRISE PEALS. Cambridge, Superlative and London; oompihni
All pest free, on receipt of postal order, from
For Rehanging, Retuning and Recasting. WM. SNOWDON, Cartmel, Lancashire.

(N B.—A postcard will bring additional details if desired.)

FOR ARTISTIC

Musical Handbells In sets, Bell Ropes, &c P E A L B O A R D S

Go to the EXPERT WRITERS.

.At the Handbell Contests, held annually in Manchester the ESTIMATES FREE FOR ANY DESCRIPTION
First Prize for the last 16 years has been awarded to bands . OF THIS KIND OF WORK.
using our bells, and on fourteen of those occasions they have gained

the Second Prze ao F. W. COULTER, " B E0epigae
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COLLEGE YOUTHS' NEW MASTER.

If anyone were ever brought up among the bells, that
description can be applied in very truth to the new Master
of the College Youths, for Mr. Albert A. Hughes, whose
election to the chair of the Ancient Society we announced
last week, first saw the light at the Whitechapel Foundry,
and his association with bells has, therefore, been lifelong.
Born in 1885, he first learned to handle a bell at a very
early age, and used to practise on an old Pre-Reformation
bell which hangs in the roof of the foundry. At the age
of 14 he began to accompany his father to St. Matthew's,
Bethnal Green, where he received his first insight into ring-
ing under the late Mr. Matthew Wood, whom Mr. Hughes
had known as long as he could remember anyone, for the
old gentleman was a regular visitor to the foundry, where
he and the late Mr. William Cooter and other well-known
London ringers used to meet for handbell ringing. From
rhis early association a close friendship sprf.ng up which
Mr. Hughes valued very highly, and which lasted until
the veteran passed avvav. Mr. Hughes, like many another

Mr. Albert A. Hughes.

ringer, cherishes the memory of Matthew Wood, and
appreciates the influence of his character on a youngster
both as a ringer and a man, for that bluff exterior covered
a heart as true as steel.

At the period when the present Master of the College
Youths became associated with Bethnal Green, *“call
changes” were mostly practised there on Sunday morn-
ings, and this form of ringing, under such a tutor at Matt.
Wood, taught a man to listen for and strike his bell. In-
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deed, <of so much advantage did this prove in improving a
youngster’s striking, that Mr. Hughes' own experience
has made him a great believer in giving novices call
changes for a little while to begin with. Half-pull ring-
ing at Bethnal Green was reserved for Sunday evenings,
when the band was augmented by Messrs. Cooter, Dor-
rington, and others. These performances whetted the
ambition of the future Master, and he used to look for-
ward keenly to the time when he should be able to ring
the treble to Grandsire Triples. When, at length, he
could manage this—and it took some time, for “ rope
sight" was his great difficulty— he found he wanted to ga
further. So it is with all ringers worthy of the name.
There is ever an unquenchable desire to go on to greater
heights. Mr. Hughes used to get further practice by
visiting the Old Hackney Church, where he received great
help from Mr. W. D. Smith.

His first peal was rung at St. Matthew’'s Church, Upper
Clapton, in May, 1906, the treble in Grandsire Triples—
Holt's Original, conducted by Mr. Challis Winnev. His
first peal with a bob bell was rung on January 16th, 1909,
at St. Matthew’s, Bethnal Green, when Mr. Hughes called
Holt's ten-part from the 3rd. Mr. Matt. Wood, then in
his 83rd year, rang the 5th, and that was the veteran's
last peal. When they had finished ringing, he said, “1'm
satisfied now, boy. | taught your father to ring and I've
taught you and you've called your first peal. | shan’t ring
another.” And he didn't.

Mr. Hughes’ list of peals is not a long one, as records
g> in these days. It numbers about 38—he has not kept
a complete list-—and comprises Grandsire Triples and
Caters, Stedman Triples, Caters and Cinques, Bob Major
and Royal, Oxford Treble Bob Major, Kent Treble Bob
Major and Royal, Double Norwich Major and Cambridge
Surprise Major, while he has also runsj' the treble to one
or two peals in Surprise methods. But while his peals
have not been many, he is very fond of good practices
where beginners are given a proper chance. Residing
now at Leytonstone, he makes St. Mary’s, Walthamstow,
his “home” for Sundav ringing, and the band there is
particularly active. It is seldom that they meet short for
Stedman Caters both morning and evening, although they
sadly miss the help of their old friend “ Bill’’ Manning,
who has left London.

Mr. Hughes’ migration to another district has, to some
extent, severed his connection with Bethnal Green, from
which, of course, the central figure was removed when
death claimed Matt. Wood, but Mr. Hughes will always
look back with pleasure upon the happy day at that church
with the veteran at the head of ringing affairs, and the
little excitements they used to have when someone did
not do as he was told.

Mr. Hughes' connection with the College Youths has
existed as long as he has been eligible, and he has twice
served in the offices of Junior and Senior Steward, and has
once been Treasurer. He had now succeeded to the highest
post of honour which the society can give him, and that
he will fill it as worthily as any who have gone before we
have no doubt. As we mentioned last week, it is an exceed-
ingly rare occurrence for both father and son to occupy
the office of Master of the Ancient Society, but this is

lwhat has now occurred, for Mr. Arthur Hughes was in the
chair in 1908. Many generations of the famous White-
chapel firm have been members of the Society, and the long
and intimate association of the two gives a special fit-
ness to the selection which the society has made. Through-
out the country—and his business connection has brought
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him into contact with ringers in all parts — his many
friends will wish Mr. Hughes a successful year of office.
May it be one in which the College Youths will, in com-
mon with all the other societies, have the opportunity of
ringing in a triumphant and enduring peace among the
nations.

BELLS OF BARTON=ON»HUMBER.
RESTORATION SCHEME COMPLETED.

Barton-on-the-Humber possesses two historic churches each with a
peal of bells, both of which have t.ow bcon placed in order. To re-
store two rings in one parish at the same time is a big undertaking.
It. was not many months since the Vicar floated the scheme, but he
did it with so much enthusiasm that the work has been completed
and the bells re-dedicated. The Cilurches—St. Peter's and St. Mary's
—are well known to antiquarians, and an appeal to them produced
several subscriptions. It had become dangerous to ring: the bells at
St-. Peter’s, while tho belfry floor was liable to give way at any tinio.
The work which v.as put in tho hands of Messrs. Gillott and Johnston,
of Croydon, consisted of the erection of new bell frames, tuning the
bells on the latest principle, and the addition of now head stocks and
wheels, and the contract has been carried out in a very satisfactory
manner. The total cost amounts to £400, of which £22 was the out-
lay on a new floor for St. Peter’'s. Towards the remaining .£380,
contributions of .£247 14s. 3d. had been received, and £100, with the
£2 10s. interest, was obtained by a bazaar iu 1913, leaving nearly
£30 to be raised. This amount had been reduced when the Bishop
of Lincoln came to bless the hells, to £23.

Tho dedication proceedings began with a parochial tea in the As.
somhly Rooms. The Bishop was present, and said he very much admired
Mr. Varah for the way in which he had tackled the restoration of the
b \H5, and he hoped the day’s proceedings would wipe off the £23.

The ceremony of blessing the bells took place in St. Peletr's Church.
A procession was formed in thevest-ry, headed by the crcssbearer, tho
robed choir and banners, the Bishop’s chaplain carrying the pastoi~.il
staff. After the ceremony at St. Peter’s, the procession proceeded to
St. Mary's Church to bless the hells, and for evensong, and at the
same timel St. Peter’s bells rang out their first peal. The great im-
provement in tho tone was at once apparent. There was a Iar%e
congregation at the service, at which the Bishop gave an address. Th>
collection was few tho bells fund, and amounted to £11 2s. 3d. Within
ten days, the Vicar, before the commencement of the service, made
tho announcement that the whole of the £400 had been raised, and
asked the congregation to sing the Doxology, which they did most
fervently.

On tlie Saturday afternoon following the blessing of the bells, and
at the invitation of the Vicar, members of the Grimsby district visited
the tower to try tho bsdls, ringers being present from Grimsby. Hull,
Scunthorpe, Barrow. Thornton, and the local company. All were de-
lighted) at the better tone and tho “ go " of the bells, and it is hoped
that it will not be long before they will ring out for filial victory and
peace.

WINCHESTER GUILD.
BASINGSTOKE DISTRICT'S ANNUAL MEETING.

The annual district meeting was hold at Basingstoke, on Saturday
weok. As i|. was known that only handballs would be iu use, and is
tho weather was stormy, tlieifqathering was smaller than usual. About
20 members w re preaont. from Basingstoke, Bramlcy, Oakley, and
RoUnrwiek. and two victors from Famham, Messrs. Alfred and
William Elkins. As the Church Cottage was occupied by the soldiers
tin meeting was held at St. Joliu’s Schools. A service, with inter-
cessions. was helel in the church, after which the tea was as usunl.
admirably served by Caterer Philpott, and the meeting followed, the
President (Dr. Boustesd) in the chair. Tho accounts were not fully
mado up, but showed a substantial balance. The following officers
were elected- President. Rev. H. W. Bonstead. D.D.; hon. secretary
and treasurer, the Rev. F. G. Hume: retyresontative on Central Com-
mittee. Miss Alice White; and auditor. Mr. H. White,

The question of members serving with the forces came up for dis-
cussion. It whs resolved that their names—some 18 members—should
be starred in the report, and that their membership should be kept

up. during their service with tho colours, their subscriptions to to
keﬁgt paid by a levy through the whole district.
he next quartc ly meetingi was fixed for January 7th, 1915, at

Oakley, when the accounts will be presented for the year, and the
next annual meeting for Nov. 20th, 1915, at Basinestoko,

The district now has 14 towers in union, about 140 performing mem-
bers, two unattached: atiel 14 honorary members.

Touches of Stedman and Grandsire Triples wore rung on handbclU
during the eivening.

Tu our report of the Winchester district meeting, it was stated that
f\l/lle thanks of the St. Mary’s, Southampton, band, was expressed to

r. G. Williams for the kind assistance given to the lompany. It was
to Mr. H. W. Wilkes that the thanks was accorded
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RESTORATION OF A CORNISH RING.
STOKE CLIMSLAIND BELDS DEDICATED.

Thursday of last week was a great day for the isolated old-world
Cornish to.oiship of Stoke Climslaud, which is separated from tho
County of De\wou by tho river Tamar, for on that occasion the re-
stored bells of the Parish Church wore dedicated. Tho church, which
is of unknown dedication, is a fine building of granite in the decoiated
style, the tower containing a peail of eight bells (tenor 15 cwt.), cast
irp] l77hl by John Pennington, whose foundry was situated close by tho
church.

For a long time tho condition of the fittings and framework pre-
vented the bells being rung, and the matter was taken in hand by
an energetic committee, with the result that tho bells were taken
away to bo retiviedi upon Canon Simpson's five-tone principle, by
Messrs. John Warner and Sons, of the Spitalficlds Bell Foundry,
London, E. The bells have now bcon put back in their aocustomed
osition, and in the* placa of the old wocdi framework Messrs. Warnor
ave erected one of their latest pattern independent frames, which
are entirely free of the walls of the tower, even though two bells ar«
“ up over.” Elsewhere in this issue will be found some interesting
illustrations of the arrangement of the bell frame. On entering the
belfry the contrast with the old state of affairs is singularly striking,
and it takes quite a time to thoroughly grasp the extremely ingeniou
way in which tho four walls of the tower have been tied together,
Tho striking change seems in tho main to be due to the absence <
largo girders running across the tower, which otie is so accustomed
to see.

The restored bells were dedicated by the Ven. the Archdeacon of
Bodmin, and ringers, upwards of 60 in number, were present from
far and near.

THE BELLS.

After ihe service, various bands took their turn at tiho ropes, and on
extremely pleasant afternoon and evening was spent. The toco of
the retuned bells evoked the greatest admiration. a:ui it was ex-
tremely gratifying to the parishioners to be able to mark this ini-

roveni >nt in their bells. It was also no less a pleasure! for tliom to

ear the unanimous verdict of all tlie ringers present that the “ go "
of tho bells was absolutely perfect, and that the sound of tho bolls
in the ringing chambcr was “ just, right.” Mr. Robort Warner, who
was representing the firm of Messrs. John Warner and Sons, was
congratulated upon the work which hael been so ably carried out.
The whole installation had been thoroughly examined previous to the
dedication, and the *“ é;o " of the bells hael) been tested by the Rev.
Maitland Kelly, President of the Devonshire Guild of Ringers, who
expressed liis satisfaction, and showed his interest in the new system
of diagonal ties to the tower, the new design of framework, and also
the Warner patent self-aligning, self-lubricating bearings, all of which
had come to his notice for the first time. This new design of frame-
work was first adopted at. St. Leonard’s Church, Shoreditch, where,
from all accounts, It has shown its great worth.

Tho inscriptions cast upon the be-lis are as follows:—

Treble: 1 CALL ALL YE TO FOLLOW ME. I.P. AND CO. 1771

2nd: GOD PRESERVE THE CHURCH. I.P. 1771

3rd - GOD SAVE THE KING. I.P.

1771,
4th: PEACE AND GOOD NEIGHBOURHOOD. I.P. AND CO. 1771.

5th: I.P. and CO. 1771 .

6th: JOHN PENNINGTON AND COMPANY MAKERS. 1771.

7th: JOHN CALL ESQR. JAMES LARIVE AND WaILLIAIl
RENDELL WARDENS. [|.P. 1771.

Tenor: JAMES LARK AND WILLIAM RENDELL. C.W.

THOMAS CALVER GENT. 1.P. AND CO. 1771

AN ANCIENT BELL FOUNDRY.

Seeing that John <Pennington lies buried in Stoke Climsland church-
ard. it will, perhaps, be of interest to our readers to know tile,
istor?/ of this famous family ef hell founders, whose identities arc
difficult, to disentangle, and are further complicated by frequent migra-
tion in Devon and Cornwall. The Exeter founelry "was first in the
hanels of Thomas and Je-lin Buirdan (1601-1624). and it then passed
into the Pennington family. Bernard Pennington had a
branch establishment at Bodmin, about 1687, and in ti?e middle ot
the 18th century Fitz Anthony Pennington (1756-1768) had a foundry
at Leznnt in Cornwall, and another one at Stoko Climfiland. Most of
the bells from their foundry boro the initials * T.P.* or * 1.P., but
between 1761 and 1781 they called themselves Pennington and Co
The last representative of tho Pennington family lies buried be-
neath the sound of hie, bells, amd his tombstone bears the following
inscription:—
Here lies tho remains of
JOHN PENNINGTON
of this Parish,
Bell Founder,
who died the 9th of July, 1824.
in tho 52nd year of his ago.

Grave! tho guardian of his dust.

Grave! the treasury of the skies

Every atom of thy trust.

Rosts in hope again to ria©.
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Stoke Climsland Bells.

John Warner &Sons,

LIMITED,

BcHfoun&crg by IRoyal

Warrant to 1b.fi!> ikiiui (Scorpc D

THE SPITALFIELDS
BELL FOUNDRY,

Spelman Street,

LONDON, E.

Established 1763.
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INDEPENDENT

Ail-Steel Bell Frames.

SELF-ALIGNING,
SELF-LUBRICATING
OIL-RING BEARINGS

Patent No. 1889G
4 w *
DIAGONAL SYSTEM for

support of Bell Frames
in weak towers.

* * *

FIVE-TONE PRINCIPLE
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NOTICES.

The Ringing W orid,” to
sent, is 9,

The Editorial Office of “
which all communications should be

mercial Road, W oking.

Com-

THE SOCIETY OF ROYAL CUMBERLAND
YOUTHS.—Ringing for Divine service at St. Martin’s-
in-the-Fields the first Sunday in the month, and at St.

Leonard’s, Shoreditch, the third Sunday, both at
10 o’clock. Meetings for practice at Shoreditch every
third Monday at 8 p.m.—H. J. Bradley, Parish Church,
Shoreditch.

ESSEX ASSOCIATION.—South-Eastern Division.—
The annual meeting will be held at Chelmsford on Satur-
day, December 5th. Special service, with short address,
at the Cathedral at 4.30. Tea at the Vestry Hall, New
Street, 6d. each to members, at 5.15. Business meeting
to follow. Bells available at 3.45 and after the meeting.
Widford, 8 bells, will be open after 6 p.m. Election of
officers for the ensuing year takes place at this meeting,
and it is hoped as many as possible will attend.—W. Lin-
coln, District Master, Church Lane, Writtle, Chelmsford.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION,—Manchester Branch.
—The next meeting will be held at the Manchester Town
Hall on Saturday, December 5th. The bells will be avail-
able for ringing from 3 to 7 p.m. Meeting to follow. Re-
ports (to life members 6d. each), are now ready
Members subscriptions are now due.—W. Wolstencroft,
Branch Secretary, 103, Victoria Street, Ashton-under-Lyne.

MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND LON-
DON DIOCESAN GUILD.—North and East District.—
A meeting will be held at All Hallows, Tottenham, on
Saturday, December 5th. Bells available from 3 o’clock.
Service, with address by the Vicar (Rev. F. Denton
Jones), at 5. Tea, for which 6d. will be charged, and
meeting to follow. All members and friends cordially in-
vited. A number of subscriptions are still outstanding,
and 1 should be glad to receive same as soon as possible.
—C. T. Coles, Honorary Secretary, 49, Wood Street,
Walthamstow.

YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.—The next meeting of
the Southern Division will be held on Saturday, Decem-
ber 5th, 1914, at Conisborough, near Rotherham. The
new peal of eight bells (tenor 13J cwts.) by Messrs. Tavlor,
will be available for ringing from 3.30 p.m. till 7 pm.
Teas may be had at moderate charges at Crowcroft's tea
rooms, near the church. All ringers welcomed.— Arthur
Hague, District Secretary, 20, Gerard Road, Rotherham.

DUDLEY AND DISTRICT GUILD.—The next quar-
terly meeting of the above Guild will be held at St.
Andrew’s Parish Church, Netherton, on Saturday, Decem-
ber 5th. Bells available at 3.30. Service in church at 5
o'clock, to be conducted by the vice-president, the Rev.
S. J. Marriott (Vicar). Business meeting in the Church
House. — Herbert Sheppard, Honorary Secretary, 113,
Himley Road, Dudley.

THE KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION —Ashford
District.—The annual meeting of the above will be held
at Headcorn on Saturday, December 5th. Bells available
at 3 o'clock. Service at 6. Tea (free) at 6.30, to be
followed by a general business meeting for the election of
officers, etc.—C. Tribe, Hon. District Secretary, British
School Villas, Tenterden.
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THE ANCIENT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE
YOUTHS (Established 1637).— Meetings for business
will be held at the Coffee Pot, Warwick Lane, E.C., on
Tuesdays, December 8th and 22nd; for Handbell practice,
01l Thursdays, December 17th and 3IS*\ a® ® p.m.
The sum of is. 8d., which entitles members to vote on
matters of finance, is now due and should be paid before
February 28th next. — William T. Coclcerill, Hon.
Secretary, 32, Edgeley Road, Clapham, S.\W.

THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Blackburn
Branch.—A meeting of the above branch will be held at
the Holy Trinity Church, Burnley, on Saturday, Dec.
12th, 1914. Bells ready at 3 o'clock. Meeting 6.30 p.m.
—J. Watson, Branch Sec.

MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND LON-
DON DIOCESAN GUILD.- Meetings for combined
practice will be held at Sunbury on Saturday, December
12th, and St. Andrew’s, Hillingdon, on Saturday, Decem-
ber 19th ; 7.30 p.m. at each tower. The secretary will bi-
glad to receive all outstanding subscriptions at an early

date. — H. C. Chandler, Honorary Secretary, Heston.
Hounslow.
LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Rochdale Branch.

— The next monthly meeting will be held at Balderstone
on Saturday, December 12th. Bells ready at 3 o’clock.
Business meeting 6.30. Members’ subscriptions are now
due, and the new reports are ready. — Joseph Ogden,
Secretary.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Liverpool Branch.
—A meeting will bs held at Garston on Saturday, Decem-
ber 13th. Bells ready at 4, service at 5, tea 5.30. Reports
ready. Members intending being present please send word
to Walter Hughes, 3, Shrewsbury Place, Garston.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Bolton Branch.—
The next meeting will be held at St. Bartholomew's on

Saturday, December 19th. Bells available from 5 p.m.
Meeting at 7. Reports now ready.—G. Pincott, Branch
Secretary.

YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Western District.—
Owing to the present crisis the December quarterly meet-
ing of the above is cancelled. Meetings for practice will
be held at Pudsey, Saturday, December 5th. and Shipley,
Saturday, January 9th, 1915. Bells available from 5 p.m.
until 9 p.m. All ringers welcome.—Percy L. Cooper,
Hon. District Secretary.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION. Rochester Dis-
trict.—The quarterly meeting at St. John's, Higham, will
be held on Saturday, January 9th, 1915, not on Saturday,
December 12th, as was arranged at the annual district
meeting, the bells not being available on that date.—
Edward A. G. Allen, Honorary Secretary.

THE LADIES-" GUILD.-— Important Notice.— Nomi-
nations are asked for a representative on the Central Coun-
cil.  Will those wishing to nominate any member please
do so before December 19th. The nominations should be
seconded. In the event of an election being necessary
the forms will be duly sent to each member.— Edith K.
Parker, Honorary Secretary, 97, Edenbridge Road, Bush
Hill Park, Enfield.

PEAL BOOKS.—Price 3s., post free 3/6. Peals writ-
ten in at 3d. per page. Prices for entering peals in Asso-
ciation official peal books upon application.—J. Beams,
West Ewell, Epsom.
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HANDBELLS FOR3SALE.

HANDBELLS FOR SALE.—Splendid set of 12 bells in
‘C with extra bell (size 18 in G), just overhauled, equal to
.new.—W. Page, 37, St. John’s, Worcester.

HOLIDAY APARTMENTS.

VISITORS TO BRISTOL will find every convenience
.and moderate charges at Mr. Ponton’s, Admiral Duncan,

Nicholas Street, Bristol. Headquarters of the Bristol
Ringers.

RINGERS and visitors to Matlock will find every com-
fort and convenience at Mrs. H. Paulson’s, Beech House,
Church Street (private house).

SITUATION WANTED.

H. H. Harding, Frankfield, Seal Chart, Sevenoaks,
seeks engagement as VERGER and SEXTON at country

Parish Church. Highest references. Member of the
K.C.A.C.R.

PRESENTATION AT GOOLE.
YORKSHIRE RINGER'S SERVICES ACKNOWLEDGED.

Gi Friday week an. interesting presentation took place at the Sydney
Hotel, Goole, tie recipient being .Mr. H. Ludkin, who for manV
yeaxs lias boon tho laider of the Goolo Parish Churoli Guild of Bed
Ringers, and a member of the Executive Committee of the Yorkshire
Association. The presentation was made in appreciation of tUe ser-
vices Mr. Ludkin has rendered to rin%ing Ur Goole, andl on the oc-
casion of his departure to tako up a lesponsiblo position at Birken-
head. The gift was in the form of a mahogany and inlaid music
cabinet, and had been subscribed for by the Vicar, churchwardens and
ringers.—Tlie. Vicar of Goole (the Rev. E. Sinker) made the presenta-
tion on behalf of the Guild, and said (hat it afforded him pleasure
to do so, although he greatl?/ regretted losing Mr. Ludkiu, who, be-
sides being loader of the bell ringers, was a member of the C.E.M.S.
and a regular attendant at church. Tlie Vicar heartily commended
Mr. Ludkin for the Wa?; in. which he had carried, on the business of
the belfry. and wished him every success in his new position.

Mr. T. Smith, a member of the Guild, and secretary of the Eastern
Division of the Yorkshire Association, added his testimony to the
nerviees of Mr. Ludjkin, and said thgy had all worked " together
amicably. He hoped Mr. Ludkin would meet with every success in
his new sphere of labour, and make new friends. Goole’s loss would
be Birkenhead'’s gain.

Mr. H, S. AVhito (churchwarden) also spoke with appreciation of
Mr. Ludkin's services, and! Mr, W. King added a few remarks, as he
and Mr. Ludkin had been close friends since they joined the belfry
together in 1899. They had been ploddin% with "lingers ever since,
and he regretted to losei Mr. Ludkin, to fill whose place would be a
difficult matter in a district like Goole. Mr. Ludkin, however, was
leaving the belfry in a better state so far as ringin‘g was concerned,
than he found it.—Mr. Ludkin thanked the company for the kind way
they had “ pattedj him on the back." He thought it was hardly neces-
sary, because, as in the caso of all conductors, he could not have done
what had been done had it not been for the help of tho other ringers.
He hoped they would stick to the new conductor as they had to him,
and he was sure they would go on happily together. He was liighly
pleased with the present, which lies would find very useful.

A short business meeting was then he'd, the Vicar presiding. Mr.
M. Tate was elected as conductor, and Mr. Ludkin was presented with
a cheque by tho Vicar and wardens.

A smoking concert followed, at which several toasts were submitted,
and songs were rendered by Messrs. Heptonstall, Ludkin, T. White,
R. R. Eatougli and W. King; Mr. T. Smith recitedl;, and Mr. White
was tile accompanist. There Was also double-hand ringing, and a very
enjoyable evening was spent.

Mr. Ludkin has received a present of r. silver cruet from the Vicar
of Thorne iu recognition of his sorvices at that tower, where he hns
been {caching the art of campanology to a new band of ringers, who
wero making excellent progress. any Thorne ringers showed their
%ppreciation by attending the gathering at Goole held in Mr. LudkinV

onour.

Mr. Ludkin is a sawyer by trade, and has secured a good appoint-
ment at Birkenhead. He will be much missed in the Goole district,
where ho has <tono a great, doal of unostentatious spado work.

ISLEWORTH.—Middlesex.—On Sunday, Oct. 25th, for morning ser-
vice, 504 Gnindsire Triples: W. Lidbotlcu 1, G. Itansome ', W. II.
Biggs 3, T. Beadle 4, H. IT Noakes 5, A. Bcckensalc 6, G. Spencer 7,
Private W _Apps 8. Private W. Apps, who belongs to the 6th Batt.
Middllesex Eeglment, now stationed at Chatham, was on a short visit
to Isleworth.
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Clewellins

s .lames. cm..

CHURCH BELLS SINGLY OR
IN RINGS.

Bell Frames in Cast Iron, Steel
and Oak.

Bells tuned on the latest im-
proved principles initiated by
the late Canon Simpson.

CASTLE GREEN,
~——BRISTOU. -
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stablished 1820.

JAMES BARWELL, JOHN PRITCHARD.

LIMITED, Church Bell Rope,

(Church Sell Pounders CLOCK AND CHIMING ROPE MANUFACTURER,
— anp — LOUGHBOROUGH.

Church Bell Han gers Maker of Ropes for the World’s Record Peal.

NEW FLEXIBLE ENDS SPLICED TO OLD ROPES.

GREAT HAM PTON STREET, J. P. has had many years’ experience in maki_ng Bell-

ropes, and makes them only of the best quality.

BIRMINGHAM PRICE LIST ON APPLICATION.
. HARRY STOKES & SON,
owers an ampaniles Inspected and

Estimates Furnished to cover every Church Bell Hangers,
EXpense_ VWOODBURY, R.S.O., DEVOIN.

Musical Handbells, in any size and number, RINGS OF BELLS, to any number, hung on th#
for Tune or Change-ringing, in Guaranteed mostapproved principles, and Bell Frames made and fixed
Quality. in Iron or in Oak.

The Ellacombe Chime Hammers Fixed.
Bell Ropes Supplied.

-
HARRY 8TOKK3 & SON, having had a considerable number of yean* ox
perlence In Cbaroh Bell Hanging, with confidence solicit the patronage of faho
u Clergy, Chnrchwardena, and Ringers generally.

sElalaFonNnizsers ALFRED BOWELL,

CHURCH BELL FOUNDER,
ipsW icH
THOMAS POBLE & SON, Church Bell-
Hangers, TAUNTON.—Bells Hung on the

L O U G H B O R O U G H most approved principles, Old Bells Re cast,
y New Bells supplied, Ropes of the best make.
Ellacombe’s Chiming Apparatus fixed, Hand-

bells in sets, Chromatic or Diatonic.

THE BADGE OF THE GRAFT
A Beautifully Executed

JOHN SMITH & SONb5 RINGERS' PENDANT

Midland Glook Work*,

AND

B E bbH"™"NUGIEH S,

LEieESTEF~A"SJ-HF"E.

in Qold, Silver or Bronze.

DERBY Specially Suitable for Gifts.
Mlefrapbls Address— Prices, Gold (9 carat) 21/-, Silver 4/6
" Gleeks, Derby." Bronze2/6 (post free).

ReLIT* M*

wakers of crocks u 1 J., COMBER, Goldsmith and Jeweller,

CHIMES for 8. Panl's Cathedral,

1111% Bevorley Minster, ~ Sslby  Abbey, Trure T ikphone * 171 WOKINOI w o K I N G
Cathedral, Thnrles Cathedral, Trinltjr Collefe, Cars-
Vi* - bridge, Belfast Assembly Hall, Magdalen College, Oxford, Printed for the P iet th ) .
and many others to Lerd Qrlmtborpe’s designs. In 1197, writ- rintea for the Froprietors by the Woodbridge Prbss, Lid.,
ing to the Vicar of MInoblnhampton, Lord Qrimthorpo saldi—" Sselth Guildford, and Published by Messrs. wm. Dawson & Sons,

M Derby will elook yon la the best way and as near eternity as possible." Lid. Cannon House.Bream's Buildings, London, E.C



